
 

Resources Board

www.local.gov.uk

Agenda

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tuesday, 21 July 2020 
2.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Zoom video call 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
Resources Board 
21 July 2020 

 

There will be a meeting of the Resources Board at 2.00 pm on Tuesday, 21 July 2020 via Zoom 
 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3263     email:     Martha.Lauchlan@local.gov.uk 
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
 
 

 

LGA Contact:  
Jonathan Bryant 
jonathan.bryant@local.gov.uk  /   020 76643004 / 07464652746 
 

Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of £9.00 per hour or £10.55  
if receiving London living wage is available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly 
people or people with disabilities) incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:Martha.Lauchlan@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

Resources Board – Membership 2019/2020 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 7)  
Cllr Tim Oliver (Vice Chairman) Surrey County Council 

Cllr Philip Atkins OBE Staffordshire County Council 
Cllr David Finch Essex County Council 

Cllr Daniel Humphreys Worthing Borough Council 
Cllr Peter Jackson Northumberland Council 

Cllr Roger Phillips Herefordshire Council 
Cllr Richard Wenham Central Bedfordshire Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Andrew Leadbetter Devon County Council 
Cllr David Leaf Bexley Council 

Cllr Byron Rhodes Leicestershire County Council 
  
Labour ( 6)  

Cllr Richard Watts (Chair) Islington Council 
Cllr Sharon Taylor OBE Stevenage Borough Council 

Cllr Tony Newman Croydon Council 
Cllr Tom Beattie Corby Borough Council 

Cllr Peter Marland Milton Keynes Council 
Cllr Erica Lewis Lancaster City Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Terry Paul Newham London Borough Council 
Cllr John Merry CBE Salford City Council 
  
Liberal Democrat ( 2)  

Cllr Keith House (Deputy Chair) Eastleigh Borough Council 
Cllr Adam Paynter Cornwall Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Mike Bell North Somerset Council 
  
Independent ( 2)  
Cllr Jason Zadrozny (Deputy 
Chair) 

Ashfield District Council 

Cllr Phelim MacCafferty Brighton & Hove City Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Loic Rich Cornwall Council 



 

 

 
 

LGA Resources Board – Attendance 2019-2020  
 

 10/09/19 19/11/19 3/3/20 12/5/20 

Councillors     

Conservative Group     

Cllr Tim Oliver Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Philip Atkins OBE Yes No No Yes 

Cllr David Finch Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Daniel Humphreys Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Peter Jackson No Yes No Yes 

Cllr Roger Phillips No No Yes Yes 

Cllr Richard Wenham Yes Yes Yes Yes 

     

Labour Group     

Cllr Richard Watts Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Tudor Evans OBE Yes Yes n/a n/a 

Cllr Sharon Taylor OBE Yes No Yes Yes 

Cllr Tony Newman Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Tom Beattie Yes Yes Yes No 

Cllr Peter Marland Yes No Yes Yes 

Cllr Erica Lewis Yes No Yes Yes 

     

Lib Dem Group     

Cllr Keith House Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Cllr Adam Paynter No Yes Yes No 

     

Independent Group     

Cllr Jason Zadrozny Yes No Yes Yes 

Cllr Phelim MacCafferty Yes Yes Yes No 

     

Substitutes/Observers     

Cllr Andrew Leadbetter No Yes No Yes 

Cllr David Leaf Yes No No Yes 

Cllr Byron Rhodes No No No No 

Cllr Terry Paul Yes Yes Yes No 

Cllr John Merry CBE No No Yes Yes 

Cllr Erica Lewis  Yes No n/a n/a 

Cllr Mike Bell No No No No 

Cllr Loic Rich No Yes No Yes 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Agenda 
 

Resources Board 
 
Tuesday 21 July 2020 
 
2.00 pm 
 
 
 

 
 

 Item Page 
 

1.   Welcome, Apologies and Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 ITEMS FOR NOTING  Page 

   

2.   Local Government Finance - verbal update 
 

 

3.   EU Funding - verbal update 
 

 

4.   Welfare reform and Universal Credit - verbal update 
 

 

 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION  Page 

   

5.   Covid-19 update 
 

1 - 12 

6.   End of Year Report and Board Priorities for 2020/21 
 

13 - 26 

 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS  Page 

   

7.   Council tax reform 
 

27 - 38 

8.   Workforce update 
 

39 - 48 

9.   Minutes of the previous meeting 
 

49 - 58 

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Tuesday, 15 September 2020, 2.00 pm, via Zoom 
 





 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

COVID-19 update 

 

Purpose of report 

For discussion. 

Summary 

This report provides an update on Covid-19 related work by the LGA which comes under the 

remit of the Resources Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Sarah Pickup 

Position:   Deputy Chief Executive 

Phone no:   02076643109 

Email:    sarah.pickup@local.gov.uk 

  

Recommendations 

That members of the Resources Board note the update and comment on the issues 

raised in the paper. 

Actions 

As directed by members 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

Covid-19 update 
 
Local Government Finance 
 
Local government finance announcements to date 
 

1. The LGA has already been successful in achieving a number of positive financial 
announcements to help councils deal with the impact of Covid-19, including £3.2 billion 
of un-ringfenced funding for local authorities, over £4 billion of upfront grant payments 
and £2.6 billion of deferred payments of business rates to central government. The 
Government also announced a three-month extension for production of annual financial 
accounts and statements as well as a delay to a number of data collection deadlines. 

 
2. On 2 July, as part of his address to the virtual edition of the LGA annual conference, the 

Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government announced a new package of 
support to address spending pressures and lost income, which included: 

 

2.1. A further £500 million un-ringfenced grant to support local councils with spending 
pressures; 
 

2.2.  A new scheme to reimburse councils for lost sales, fees and charges income - 
losses of more than 5 per cent of a council’s planned income from sales, fees and 
charges will be covered at a rate of 75p in every pound; and 
 

2.3. Measures to allow council and business rates deficits to be repaid over three years 
instead of one. The Government will announce, at the 2020 Spending Review, how 
it plans to apportion irrecoverable tax losses between central and local 
government. 

 
3. At the time of writing, neither the allocations of the £500 million grant nor further 

guidance regarding the sharing of losses of sales, fees and charges had been published. 
 

Latest information on the financial challenge facing councils 
 

4. The LGA has received access to data from all returns submitted to MHCLG as part of the 
June round of their financial survey exercise. The LGA issued a press release 
highlighting the £10.9 billion financial challenge arising from the impact of COVID-19 in 
2020/21, 40 per cent (£4.4 billion) of which is due to cost pressures, 34 per cent 
(£3.7billion) to uncollected council tax and business rates, and 26 per cent (£2.8 billion) 
to lost non-tax income such as sales, fees and charges. More detail from the survey can 
be found on the LGA website and has been shared with member authorities. 
 

5. The figures do not include the impact of the Government’s announcements summarised 
above, any contribution of CCGs to local authority spending on COVID-19 or business 
rates losses absorbed by central government through the business rates retention 
system. 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 5

https://local.gov.uk/lga-analysis-covid-19-council-funding-gap-widens-ps74-billion
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/MHCLG%20June%20financial%20information%20survey%20%E2%80%93%20breakdown%20of%20results.pdf


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 
LGA commissioned work 
 
6. As part of the work to better understand the issues that councils are facing as a result of 

COVID-19, and to develop proposals for the upcoming Spending Review, as well as the 
more immediate challenges, the LGA has commissioned two pieces of work: 
 

6.1. LG Futures was commissioned to develop and model some proposals on how non-
collected tax revenue can be dealt with. A draft of this report has been received. 
The report will be used to inform further work and our asks of Government. 
 

6.2. In advance of the 2020 Spending Review due to take place this Autumn, the 
Institute for Fiscal Studies has been commissioned to analyse the longer-term 
impacts of COVID-19 on local government finance, including future costs and 
income losses. We will keep Resources Board up to date on this work. 

 
Administration of support for businesses 
 
7. The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) publishes weekly 

data updates on the delivery of the £12.3 billion business support grants. At the time of 
writing, the latest update, published on 7 July, reports that £10.65 billion has been paid 
out to businesses in relation to over 867,000 properties representing 86.3 per cent of the 
total allocation and 90.6 per cent of the total number of eligible properties identified by 
councils. 
 

8. On the £617 million discretionary fund for those businesses which cannot receive 
support through the above grants (such as businesses which do not pay rates) a number 
of council schemes have now passed their closing date and have paid out grant. At the 
time of drafting this report BEIS has not yet published any data on spend of this grant 
although councils have been asked to supply data to BEIS. Councils have also been 
asked to provide information on the payment of grants at the constituency level. 

 
9. If all eligible businesses can be contacted and paid, and funding for the discretionary 

scheme is spent in full, LGA officers estimate there could be an underspend of £600 
million. In response to a report by the Institute of Fiscal Studies, we have called for the 
Government to redistribute any unspent resources from this scheme, including any 
clawed back, to councils to be spent on local efforts to help further support businesses 
and reboot local economies as we move into the next phase of this crisis. 

 
10. LGA and council officers have continued to engage extensively on all these schemes 

with Government officials, promoting the efforts of councils and raising issues relating to 
the schemes and interpretation of the Government guidance. 

 
Reviews by HM Treasury affecting longer term economic recovery 
 
11. In the March Budget, the Chancellor announced reviews of: 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-grant-funding-local-authority-payments-to-small-and-medium-businesses
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-grant-funding-local-authority-payments-to-small-and-medium-businesses
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14883
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-ifs-report-coronavirus-impact-council-finances


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

11.1. Business rates – this was on the agenda of the previous two meetings of the 
Resources Board. Following the recommendation of the LGA’s Executive Advisory 
Board the Task and Finish Group on Business Rates Retention and the Fair 
Funding Review will be reformed to take forward this policy work; 
 

11.2. The Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) future lending arrangements - The LGA’s 
response to the PWLB consultation, cleared by Resources Board, was submitted in 
late May. In addition to raising concerns with the proposals we also called for 
measures to help councils manage cash flow and costs through the current 
pandemic. The consultation has been extended to the end of July and we have 
engaged in HM Treasury workshops on the proposals. 
 

11.3. The Green Book, the Government guidance on how to appraise and evaluate 
policies, projects and programmes. We are engaging with HMT and local 
authorities on this. 

 

Workforce 

12. The National Joint Council for local government services (NJC) has issued nine circulars 
between 12 February and 12 June which have provided joint employer-union guidance on 
several workforce-related issues including: 
 
12.1 self-isolation and pay 
12.2 working at home / redeployment / leave 
12.3 schools: closures / remaining open for vulnerable and critical workers’ children 
12.4 social distancing 
12.5 essential travel 
12.6 PPE 
12.7 recovery / return to work 
12.8 abuse of employees by the public 
12.9 working at home tax relief 
12.10 quarantine after foreign travel / prior to admission to hospital 
12.11 test & trace 

 

13. We have worked hard throughout the crisis to ensure that joint guidance has been issued 
to councils as soon as practicable. We have managed successfully to rebut some 
suggestions from the unions that would not have proved popular with councils. 
Nonetheless we are pleased to have secured a one hundred per cent success rate in 
ensuring that all guidance issued to date has been on a joint basis, without the need for 
employer-only advice, which would have caused difficulties at local level. 

 

COVID-19 Council Workforce Data Survey  

 
14. Having the right workforce data during the pandemic has been an important issue for 

councils across the UK. Councils reported receiving increased demands for workforce 
data from government and their Local Resilience Forums (LRF). On that basis the 
regional employer organisations and individual councils raised the need to have an 
agreed COVID-19 workforce dataset with government. Working with MHCLG, DHSC and 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5

https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/hm-treasury-public-works-loans-board-future-lending-terms
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/public-works-loan-board-future-lending-terms-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-green-book-appraisal-and-evaluation-in-central-governent


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

the Cabinet Office, the LGA agreed on the data set on the basis that this discourages any 
further workforce data demands on councils during the crisis. The first fortnightly ‘snap-
shot’ survey was sent to all councils across England, Wales and Northern Ireland on 7 
May. Through the survey, councils have shared a consistent and uniform data set to 
highlight the workforce impact of COVID-19 across the local government sector. The data 
now forms part of the LRF dashboard reports to help inform local decision making on 
responding to crisis and is shared with MHCLG and relevant government departments. 
 

15. The latest headlines from the survey show that service disruption remains an issue with 
two thirds reporting disruption to overall services. The number of staff furloughed has 
increased by 7,783 to 12,395 which relates to the deadline for first furloughing of 30 June. 
Since 1 March almost 10,000 additional staff have been recruited, however, local 
authorities continue to face pressure due to staff absence, despite the rate falling by 15 
per cent over the last two weeks. 33,386 council staff were unavailable for work with 
nearly two-fifths (40 per cent) of staff being unavailable through ‘self-isolation’. It is 
positive to report that 94 per cent of councils say they have sufficient PPE although 3 per 
cent, predominantly County Councils, do not. We continue to work with government and 
the relevant regional agencies to resolve issues for councils. The COVID-19 Workforce 
Data collection will continue throughout the summer.  

 
Recovery phase 
 

16. The LGA Workforce team are considering how best to support councils beyond recovery 
into renewal and are currently building a workforce programme to that effect. This work 
includes initial transition to the world of work when social distancing still dominates, but 
also starts to look toward the local government workplace of the future. We are capturing 
questions to consider, to assist employers in building their workforce response to renew 
post Covid-19. This will include advice on managing the blended workforce (as we 
anticipate greater numbers of home-based workers) and staff well-being. The work is 
highlighted in a recent blog. 
 

17. We are also starting to ask what this means in terms of organisational design, recruitment 
and skills as well as practical questions about job design and workforce planning. Finally, 
we will consider some larger policy issues about how local government contributes more 
broadly to recovery, how the status, value and recognition of key workers might be 
impacted by all this, what is means for social care, and of course how you ensure any 
recovery is driven by equality, diversity and inclusivity. 

 

18. Much of our existing support and offer remains viable through digital means and remains 
relevant as part of the solution to emerging workforce challenges, so we will be making 
that clear and linking parts of our offer in an explicit way to assist those looking for 
additional support during this time.  

 

Supporting councils on workforce planning to aid COVID-19 recovery  
 

19. The LGA Workforce Team are providing an improvement support project to help councils 
plan their workforce needs (right people, right skills, right time). Specifically, the offer is to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-research-report-covid-19-workforce-survey-1-july-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support/workforce-blog/covid-19-react-respond-renew-what-does-mean


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

provide councils with two days support to carryout workforce analytics to produce 
effective workforce plans. The offer launched in February this year (to start in April 2020) 
and aimed to provide help to up to 40 councils in England. Over 40 councils applied for 
the support, but many have deferred help to later in the year due to the pandemic.  

 

20. As we move to the recovery stage councils have re-engaged with the project and we are 
now supporting those councils with online tools, an active on-line community of practice 
and fortnightly Practice Sharing sessions using MS Teams to aid progress and share 
learning. The project has worked with NHS Transformation Unit to develop the workforce 
planning tools and in 2020 the project will be working with skills for Care to specially 
support workforce planning in the adult social care workforce. 

 

21. More information can be found here. The LGA Workforce team as part of the workforce 
planning project is providing all councils with support in developing career pathways in 
service / specific occupational areas. This is to assist councils develop succession 
planning and wider employee progression into new roles. More information can be found 
here. 

 

Workforce Wellbeing 
 

22. Since the last meeting, we have added to our suite of wellbeing resources with advice on 
supporting staff who have been furloughed and are considering the request from the 
unions as part of NJC Green Book negotiations to lead a National Review of Health and 
Wellbeing in the Workplace as part of our work in exploring support for long-term 
wellbeing issues for our workforce in response to the different stresses experienced while 
working through a national public health emergency (subject to a pay agreement being 
reached). 
 

23. We are also working with LGA colleagues to re-shape our work on equalities, diversity 
and inclusion to encourage a more diverse and inclusive leadership and workforce at all 
levels of the organisation, that is more representative of the different elements of our 
communities. 

 

24.  We are also working on tools to promote organisational cultures that enable a diverse 
workforce to participate fully with the structures and processes of local government in 
designing and delivering our services in inclusive and meaningful ways, focussing 
particularly on employment policies and processes for recruitment, development and 
reward, actively adopting a ‘diversity by design’ approach. 

 

25. We are also looking at ways to ensure that funding issues resulting in discussions of the 
reshaping of local government services includes consideration of the impact on the 
diversity of affected employees/workers to safeguard fairness and avoid a 
disproportionate impact on BAME staff in local government.  Recent work includes 
gathering and publishing good practice examples of work that local authorities are doing 
to carrying out supplementary risk assessments and conversations with their BAME 
employees to find out what additional support can be put in place to manage the safety of 
these staff at work while work is done nationally to understand why people from BAME 
communities are disproportionately affected by COVID-19. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

https://khub.net/group/lga-workforce-planning-support
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support/workforce-planning
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support/workforce-planning/supporting-councils-develop-career-pathways


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 
 

26. On 16 June, the Government published Covid-19-understanding the impact on BAME 
communities. A summary of stakeholder insights into factors affecting the impact of 
coronavirus (COVID-19) on black, Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) communities.  

 

Education  
 

27. The Government recently announced that all pupils will return to school in September. As 
a result, councils and schools are now working at pace to start the planning process for a 
full reopening of schools to all pupils and staff (where the DfE /PHE guidance states it is 
safe to do so) from the start of the autumn term in September. 
 

28. DfE published detailed guidance on 2 July (see links below) to support schools and 
colleges to fully reopen in September and early years and childcare providers from 20 
July.  Current restrictions on group sizes will be lifted to allow schools, colleges and 
nurseries to fully reopen to all children and young people. Covid-19 secure measures will 
remain in place to reduce the risk of transmission. 

 

 Guidance for full opening of schools 

 Guidance for full opening of special schools and other specialist institutions 

 Guidance for further education and skills providers 

 Guidance for early years and childcare providers  
 

29. Schools and councils are continuing to adapt for eligible children and year groups and 
reassuring pupils, parents and staff.  Most schools have not closed since the start of 
pandemic of course and continued to be open in line with the DfE guidance. Schools 
opened from 1 June to reception, years 1 and 6 in primaries, and years 10 and 12 in 
secondary schools, as well as where possible offering additional places for all year 
groups to be able to return, depending on school circumstances. 
 

30. As the infection rate fluctuates, councils and schools are making decisions based on the 
expert and Government advice.  For example, in w/c 29 June several schools closed in 
the Leicester area as a result of local outbreaks. 

 

31. On 19 June the government announced a £1 billion Covid “catch up” package to tackle 
the impact of lost teaching time.  The LGA welcomed this funding, highlighting the fact 
that councils will work with schools and government to help children catch-up on any 
school work they may have missed, and ensure as many pupils as possible return to 
school in September. We await further details of what the funding will cover but early 
indications suggest that the majority of schools will close for all pupils across the summer 
holiday period apart from the usual clubs and activities. It is widely agreed within the 
education sector that teachers, leadership teams and support staff all need a proper 
break over the summer. Although the reality is with the DfE autumn term reopening 
guidance only being published on 2 July and the intended Government pay consultation 
due to take place over the summer holidays, a significant amount of work will need to be 
undertaken before the start of the autumn term. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/•%09https:/www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-understanding-the-impact-on-bame-communities?utm_source=8ce09199-ce0f-47f2-899b-c4337150c3de&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_content=immediate
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/uTlaCj2J6sjDlrQtWXtva
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/paIACk5MXUnAYEzTVQZG3
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Ms8DClO6EfomOrNfyQ1GG
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/xDfGCmwXNI581xNS9VzdA
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/billion-pound-covid-catch-up-plan-to-tackle-impact-of-lost-teaching-time


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

32. We are holding an LGA webinar on schools focused employment law issues in the 
afternoon of the 24 July.  

 

33. The NEOST guide (National Employer of School Teachers) wellbeing guide for schools 
and trusts was published by the LGA in June and provides schools and trusts with 
information and guidance as well as signposting to other resources to best support the 
wellbeing of their staff. The guide has been very well received and has attracted positive 
attention from the DfE which has led to LGA Officers being invited to be members of DfE 
working groups on other related national policy work.  

 

LGA Apprenticeships Programme  
 

34. The LGA Apprenticeship programme is continuing to provide support to councils during 
the pandemic. Government has updated its Apprenticeships Guidance five times since 
the start of the COVID-19 disruption, and this now covers a range of topics, from online 
learning to remote end point assessments, functional skills flexibilities and returning to on-
site delivery of training. The LGA has a provided support directly to councils through the 
Apprenticeships online community of practice (KHUB Group) to update councils on the 
latest changes, including an FAQ document covering many of the main issues in the 
guidance.  

 

Return to Social Work 
 

35. The LGA’s Return to Social Work Programme is underway and 200 participants are being 
trained and will shortly be commencing their placements in councils. 
 

36. The Social Work Together programme has over 1000 expressions of interest for social 
workers who want to come back to work to help support councils to support their 
communities during these difficult times. Candidates receive free learning resources to 
help them refresh their skills and be ready for work, when needed either in the immediate 
future or during the anticipated future peaks. 

 

Fire 
 

37. As we move out of the urgent response phase work has focussed on maintaining the 
positions reached on additional working. The Tripartite agreement has been extended 
from 26 May to 15 July, with the potential to further extend to 26 August. The 14 
additional work areas therefore remain available to FRAs should there be another peak 
within that time and an FRA locally wishes to use one or more to support a local partner 
organization, for example a local ambulance trust or care homes. 

 

Job Retention Scheme 
 

38. We have continued to update the LGA guidance on the Coronavirus Job Retention 
Scheme as it is amended and Government policy develops.  From July the focus has 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/LGA%20teachers%27%20pay%20update%202020%20-%2022%20June%202020.pdf
https://ukc-word-edit.officeapps.live.com/we/•%09https:/www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support/education-and-young-people/school-teachers
https://khub.net/group/apprenticeship-levy-group-2016-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-workforce-coronavirus-job-retention-scheme


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

moved to partial furloughing as many workers are returning to work and the support from 
the scheme reduces. The LGA COVID survey indicates that around a third of councils 
have furloughed some staff. 
 

Reshaping financial support 

 
39. When the coronavirus crisis escalated in late March work on financial hardship and 

economic vulnerability rose rapidly up the agenda.  We were able to quickly review and 
expand the Reshaping Financial Support programme to share emerging learning and 
policy development with a growing group of councils. 
 

40. Councils in the programme have contributed directly to Government policy and funding 
decisions on food poverty and hardship funding, including the recent £63m fund for ‘food 
and other essentials’ that is being disbursed to councils from the Department for the 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and have provided a regular sounding board 
for Government departments, key stakeholders and partners. 

 

41. We have produced a range of guidance for the sector, drawing on the approach of 
councils in the programme. Publications include a summary of coronavirus crisis support 
and a good practice guide on financial hardship schemes. 

 

42. We have developed a ‘demand dashboard’ to enable councils to identify need, engage 
with partners and target support most effectively.  We are currently piloting the dashboard 
with 24 councils, with a view to developing something that can be expanded across the 
sector and used to support local benchmarking.  We are partnering with EY and Xantura 
on their work with councils to identify households at risk of debt and financial exclusion. 
This will also include work on data-sharing with partners including the VCS and DWP. 

 

43. We have worked with partners including Citizens Advice and Money Advice Trust to 
develop a shared ask to MHCLG on reviewing council tax regulations to make it easier for 
councils to support vulnerable residents.  We will be working with councils to develop 
good practice in debt recovery and liability, which will help to inform our response to the 
Cabinet Office call for evidence on fairness in debt management. 

 

44. We worked closely with MHCLG and councils on the implementation of the £500m 
‘hardship fund’ to provide reductions in council tax liability.  We have highlighted that the 
current funding is likely to be insufficient to enable councils to provide the support that 
low-income households need (MHCLG are collecting data as part of their monthly 
returns). 

 

Welfare delivery and reform 

 

45. We continue to work closely with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and 
councils on the implementation of Universal Credit and wider welfare reform. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/040520%20LGA%20Briefing%20economic%20Vulnerability%20and%20financial%20hardship%20coronavirus%20esponse%20.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/good-practice-guide-delivering-financial-hardship-support-schemes
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/895296/Fairness_in_gov_debt_management_Call_for_evidence_WEB.pdf


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

46. We published a report in February 2020 highlighting the cost impacts on councils’ 
homelessness services from the continued freeze of the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 
rate.  We have also worked consistently and effectively with a range of partners including 
Crisis, Shelter and London Councils to highlight the need to ensure affordability in the 
private rented sector. 

 

47. The LHA rate was lifted in March 2020 as part of the Government’s coronavirus 
measures.  Government has not ruled out the possibility of lowering the rate again in the 
forthcoming Spending Review.  Our research provides a solid evidence-base for 
continuing to press Government on the need for the LHA rate to remain at least the 30th 
percentile of market rents. 

 

48. Work on wider welfare reform has been largely suspended during the pandemic.  
However, we have worked closely with DWP on temporary changes to benefits 
administration, as well as key issues related to low-income households, including the 
sufficiency on Discretionary Housing Payment and local support for new Universal Credit 
claimants. 

 

49. We are commissioning research to review the impact on households when financial 
support (e.g. the furlough scheme; mortgage holidays) and temporary measures (e.g. the 
removal of the minimum income floor) are stepped down, and liabilities (e.g. rent; council 
tax) are restored.  This will inform future lobbying on funding for councils and the design 
on the benefits system. 
 

European Structural and Investment Fund 
 

50. The LGA sought intelligence from local and combined authorities on how current 
European Structural and Investment Fund activity has been impacted by COVID-19. This 
includes looking at ways to reduce the burdens on current project beneficiaries, so they 
can concentrate on COVID issues and be assured that their running costs will be 
continued to be met, as far as possible. We also sought ideas from member authorities 
on how current projects can be redirected and pivoted to COVID related activity, and what 
could be done with remaining funds to support those businesses and residents most in 
need within the ESIF framework. 
 

51. We submitted a summary of the intelligence and ideas gathered to the Performance and 
Dispute Resolution National Sub-Committee. This has informed central government 
assurance that has been published. 

 

52. £51 million of ERDF Reserve Fund monies has been secured to support councils 
implement social distancing measures for local high streets. The remaining parts of the 
ERDF Reserve Fund will be to support SMEs, including the Kickstart Tourism Package. 

 

53. The LGA continues to raise concerns about DWP not fully utilising the ESF programme 
before we leave the ESIF programme. This includes the ESF Reserve Fund and the 
remaining funds that are stuck in the appraisal process. The LGA has called for the 
Government to urgently work with councils and combined authorities to ensure the 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

https://www.local.gov.uk/local-housing-allowance-freeze-and-homelessness


 

 

Resources Board 

21 July 2020 

 
 

remaining money is allocated quickly to support the national recovery from the pandemic, 
as well as the publication of the consultation on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5





 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

 
End of Year Board Report and Priorities for 2020/21 
 
Purpose of report  
 
For information and discussion. 
 
Summary 
 
This report provides an overview of the issues and work the Resources Board has overseen 
during last year. It sets out key achievements in relation to the priorities for the board in 
2019/2020 and looks forward to next year’s priorities. 
 

 

 
Recommendations 

 
Members are invited to: 

 
1. Note the achievements against the board’s priorities in 2019/2020, and 

 
2. Note the board’s proposed priority areas for 2020/21. 

 
Action 
 
Officers to action as appropriate, in line with members comments and steers.  
 

 
 
Contact officer:   Sarah Pickup 
Position: Deputy Chief Executive 
Phone no: 0207 664 3109 
E-mail: Sarah.pickup@local.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Sarah.pickup@local.gov.uk


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

End of Year Board Report 
  
 
Background and Context 
 
1. The LGA’s Resources Board shapes and develops the Association's policies and 

programmes in relation to Local Government Finance; EU Funding and Successor 
Arrangements; Welfare Reform; and Workforce issues. 
 

2. Members are asked to consider the achievements of the Board over the last year against 
the priorities that were set at its meeting in September 2019 and to consider possible 
areas of work for 2020/21. 

 
3. Based on feedback from today’s meeting, a more detailed report will be brought to the 

first Board meeting of the new cycle on 15 September outlining specific work 
programmes for 2020/21. 
 

 
Achievements against priorities for 2019/20 
 
Local Government Finance 
 
COVID-19: funding 
 
4. The emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic, in March 2020, has led to a refocussing of 

priorities to concentrate on the financial pressures arising from the pandemic. 
 

5. There are considerable financial pressures facing councils as a result of Covid-19, both in 
terms of the direct costs associated with responding to the crisis, as well as continuing to 
deliver ‘business as usual’ services with significantly reduced income flows. 
 

6. We have been successful in achieving a number of positive financial announcements to 
help councils deal with the impact of Covid-19, including: 
 
6.1 Three un-ringfenced funding announcements, worth £3.7 billion in total, to help meet 

the immediate impacts of the crisis on council financial positions. 
 
6.2 A scheme to share irrecoverable losses of sales, fees and charges between central 

and local government. 
 
6.3 A facility to spread the local taxation deficits over three years rather than one, with a 

commitment for the next Spending Review to contain an announcement on how 
irrecoverable local tax losses will be shared between central and local government. 

 
6.4 Over £4 billion of upfront grant payments and £2.6 billion of deferred payments of 

business rates to central government to aid cash flow. 
 

6.5 A three-month extension of the timescales for production of annual financial 
accounts and statements. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

 
6.6 The extension of a number of reporting and data collection deadlines. 
 

7. To aid LGA’s work on COVID-19, including supporting councils, officers have been 
analysing the returns councils have been making to the MHCLG financial information 
surveys, disseminating information to Principal Advisers about their regions. 

 
COVID-19: business support 
 
8. As part of its COVID-19 business support package, on 20 March the Chancellor 

announced that the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 
would provide £12.3 billion to local authorities in England to administer the Small 
Business Grants Fund (SBGF) and the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Business Grants 
Fund (RHLGF).  

 
9. In response to the representations by councils and the LGA for businesses out of the 

scope of current measures to receive further support, on 2 May BEIS announced an 
additional discretionary fund of up to £617 million. 

 
10. LGA and council officers have continued to engage extensively on all these schemes with 

Government officials, promoting the efforts of councils and raising issues relating to the 
schemes and interpretation of the Government guidance.  

 
Spending Round 2019 and 2020/21 local government finance settlement 
 
11. Officers from the LGA finance team took a leading role in negotiating with Government 

officials on the 2019 Spending Round, which delivered a roll-over of temporary grants for 
another year, an additional £1 billion of adult social care funding, £700 million for 
education services for children and young people with special educational needs and 
disabilities, as well as further council tax flexibilities. 
 

12. This was followed by a technical consultation on the 2020/21 local government finance 
settlement, to which we responded on 31 October 2019, and the provisional 2020/21 
local government finance settlement, to which we responded on 16 January 2020. 

 
13. The LGA provided on-the-day briefings on both the 2019 Spending Round and the 

2020/21 local government finance settlement. 
 

14. As the response to COVID-19 develops, the LGA is pushing for funding for local 
government and certainty from Government regarding the 2020 Spending Review and 
the 2021/22 local government finance settlement, including the future of new homes 
bonus and the business rates retention reset. This work will carry into the next board 
cycle. 

 

 

 

Business rates retention and the Fair Funding Review 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/chancellor-announces-additional-support-to-protect-businesses
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/chancellor-announces-additional-support-to-protect-businesses
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/top-up-to-local-business-grant-funds-scheme
https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/spending-round-2019
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/lga-response-technical-consultation-202021-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2020-to-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-england-2020-to-2021
https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Local%20Government%20Finance%20Settlement%202021%20LGA%20response%20FINAL.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/spending-round-2019-day-briefing
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/provisional-local-government-finance-settlement-202021-day


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

15. In the first part of the board year, the LGA continued work with MHCLG officials on 
reforms in preparation for introducing 75 per cent business rates retention and its review 
of relative needs and resources (‘Fair Funding Review’) in April 2021. 
 

16. On business rates retention in particular, extensive work was done regarding an 
alternative model of administering business rates retention to help reduce the financial 
volatility caused by business rates appeals, with the LGA commissioning modelling to 
help illustrate how such an approach could work. 
 

17. However, these work programmes were deprioritised from March 2020 onwards in light of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. On 28 April, the Government announced that these reforms 
would no longer go ahead from April 2021. 

 
Other Business Rates Issues 
 
18. Following HM Treasury launching the terms of reference for a fundamental review of 

business rates in March 2020, we engaged with Government officials carrying out the 
review. The initial call for evidence has not yet been published but we have been clear 
that the review must be broad in scope and consider alternatives. This followed the 31 
October 2019 publication of the results of the Treasury Select Committee inquiry into the 
impact of business rates on business, to which the Board Chair provided oral evidence in 
May 2019. 
 

19. To aid the emerging debate, LGA commissioned a report on how an e-commerce levy 
could be implemented and managed. This was published on 7 January 2020 at our 
annual finance conference. In follow-up, Lead Members of Resources, City Regions and 
People and Places Boards held a joint seminar to develop the LGA’s approach to fiscal 
devolution policy. This will continue over the next board year. 
 

20. We also carried out a refreshed survey of the financial issues caused by business rates 
avoidance, which concluded that councils are losing £250 million each year due to this. 
The survey findings have been published. 

 
Capital Financing  
 
21. In October 2019, the Public Works Loans Board unexpectedly increased its lending rate 

to councils by one percentage point. We issued an immediate reaction and have 

continued to press Government to change course on this decision, including letters to 

Ministers. In response to this the Government announced discounted loans for priority 

areas to be made available in the Spring budget. 

 

22. HM Treasury also issued a consultation on future PWLB future lending terms. We 

responded to this consultation in May 2020. The main concern with the consultation 

proposals is that in seeking to prevent councils from borrowing to fund investment assets 

they will make it too difficult for councils borrow to fund investment in key capital priorities 

such as infrastructure and housing. As well as renewing calls for cheaper borrowing we 

also called for new short term borrowing facilities to aid the COVID-19 response. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6

https://www.local.gov.uk/alternative-business-rates-retention-illustrative-model-0
https://www.local.gov.uk/alternative-business-rates-retention-illustrative-model-0
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-allocations-of-1-6-billion-funding-boost-for-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/business-rates-review-terms-of-reference/hm-treasury-fundamental-review-of-business-rates-terms-of-reference
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/business-rates-review-terms-of-reference/hm-treasury-fundamental-review-of-business-rates-terms-of-reference
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/treasury-committee/news-parliament-2017/impact-of-business-rates-report-published-19-20/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/treasury-committee/news-parliament-2017/impact-of-business-rates-report-published-19-20/
https://www.local.gov.uk/councils-and-e-commerce-why-what-and-how-local-e-commerce-levy
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-survey-ps250-million-year-lost-through-business-tax-avoidance
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-pwlb-rate-rise
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/public-works-loan-board-future-lending-terms-consultation
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/hm-treasury-public-works-loans-board-future-lending-terms


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

23. We also provided written evidence to the Public Accounts Committee inquiry into local 

authority commercial investment in May 2020. This was followed by the Board Chair 

providing oral evidence. 

Audit 
 
24. The board year started with us working hard to raise concerns with Ministers over delays 

for 2018/19 audits in September 2019. The Board Chair wrote to the Local Government 
Minister and to Public Sector Audit and Appointments (PSAA) on the issue. 
 

25. We also responded to a number of consultations, such as the annual consultation on 
audit fees by PSAA in February 2020 and the NAO consultation on local Code of Audit 
Practice 2020 in December 2019. We broadly supported the NAO’s suggested revisions 
in our response. 
 

26. The Redmond Review of local authority financial reporting and external audit issued a 
call for evidence in 2019, to which we responded in December, arguing against the re-
establishment of a separate agency to look after audit matters. The review was paused 
due to the priority given to COVID-19, but is starting to progress again. 

 
Counter Fraud 
 
27. The Board of Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally published the Fighting Fraud and 

Corruption Locally Strategy for the 2020s in late March. This included a foreword from 

Resources Board Chair and was endorsed by Resources Board Lead Members. A launch 

conference was postponed due to the pandemic and is now planned to take place in 

October. 

Local Government Finance Priorities For 2020/21 
 

28. Working with other Boards, the Resources Board will contribute to a high-profile 

campaign and reports in advance of the 2020 Spending Review, Autumn Budget and 

2021/22 Local Government Finance Settlement that make the case for adequate 

resources for local government and the additional freedoms and flexibilities needed.  This 

will include lobbying for the Government to fully cover the costs and irrecoverable income 

losses, as well as deal with the cash flow issues, arising from the COVID-19 pandemic 

that stretch beyond the current financial year. 

 

29. To influence thinking, formulate policy and respond on behalf of local government so that 

councils are supported by an appropriate financial framework that is appropriate, not over 

restrictive and balanced with local freedom and accountability. This will include 

responding to consultations, reviews and reports that impact on local government, 

including but not limited to, business rates, council tax, other income, capital finance, 

accounting practices, audit policy, treasury management, and other related issues. 

 

30. The Government has delayed further business rates retention and the Fair Funding 

Review and the LGA will seek to establish when and if these reforms will be introduced.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

https://committees.parliament.uk/work/273/local-authority-commercial-investment/
https://committees.parliament.uk/work/273/local-authority-commercial-investment/
https://committees.parliament.uk/event/962/formal-meeting-oral-evidence-session/
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/psaas-consultation-audit-fee-scale-202021
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/psaas-consultation-audit-fee-scale-202021
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/NAO%20Draft%20Code-of-Audit-Practice-Consultation-LGA%20response%202019%2011%2019.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Redmond%20review%20call%20for%20views%20-%20LGA%20submission.pdf
https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities
https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities/FFCL-Strategy-2020
https://www.cifas.org.uk/insight/public-affairs-policy/fighting-fraud-corruption-local-authorities/FFCL-Strategy-2020


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

This work was previously led by the Business Rates Retention and Fair Funding Review 

Task and Finish Group, Leadership Board and the Executive Advisory Board. 

 
Workforce  
 
COVID-19 related activity 

 
31. Since mid-February, nearly all routine workforce team activity has been suspended and 

we have been working on COVID-19 advice and guidance. At the outset we helped 

develop the LGA response to the Coronavirus Act emergency powers legislation and 

have revamped our online offer. 

Industrial and employment issues 

 
32. We have worked with Trade Union colleagues to issue: 

 

32.1 Nine joint circulars for Local Government staff covering self-isolation and working 

from home; critical worker status; and social distancing 

 

32.2 Several guidance notes on schools covering school closures and notice periods for 

teachers and school leaders 

 

32.3 An agreement on extra responsibilities in the Fire Service during COVID 

 
33. Meanwhile, pay negotiations activity has continued and has reached the stage of 

consultation on a final offer in Local Government Services. 

 
Guidance 

 

34. We developed text for a series of Frequently Asked Questions on COVID employment 

issues which are updated as necessary covering for example, managing staff when 

services are closed and redeployment. We prepared LGA guidance on the critical worker 

procedures produced by Government in response to the closure of schools and on the 

coronavirus job retention scheme. 

 
 
 
COVID Workforce Survey 

 

35. Working with research colleagues the LGA COVID-19 workforce survey summary 

report is now in its third edition, monitoring key factors such as the number of staff 

absent with COVID-19 and the number on furlough. The survey continues to develop as 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/workforce-and-hr-support
https://local.gov.uk/covid-19-workforce-survey-research-report-17-june-2020
https://local.gov.uk/covid-19-workforce-survey-research-report-17-june-2020


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

we enter further phases of the COVID response. Councils are able to access their own 

and comparative data in LG Inform. 

Ensuring service provision through emergency recruitment 

 

36. In partnership with DfE, Social Work England and DHSC, we launched a ‘Social Work 

Together’ campaign to encourage people back into the profession to deal with COVID-

related pressures. By June over 1000 applicants and 88 councils had signed up, with 

North Yorkshire CC being one of the first councils to offer positions to five social workers. 

 

37. We worked with Social Work England to adapt our current Return to Social Work 

Programme in order to provide help with the pressures that councils are experiencing 

with the pandemic. Through urgent dialogue with pension scheme administrators, we 

ensured that retired social workers who return to work will not suffer any pension 

abatement. 

Staff wellbeing 

 
38. We have worked with partners to produce advice, guidance and support on the wellbeing 

of different categories of staff including blogs, case studies from councils and examples 

of organisations providing direct support to employees on health and wellbeing. 

 

39. We have produced a short film about supporting staff who may be furloughed, exploring 

what kind of support may be appropriate for long-term wellbeing issues such as burn-out 

or trauma in certain professions, and looking at ways we can help staff to have healthy 

home workstation arrangements and practices. 

Other activity 
 
Disability Confident 

 

40. We have worked with DWP and councils to raise awareness of the Disability Confident 

Scheme and can report that 91 per cent of councils have signed up. We continue to work 

with councils who want to achieve Disability Confident Leader status so that they can 

influence recruitment practices in their local areas. 

Employee Relations Casework 

 
41. Ongoing support to councils in the context of complex employee relations casework 

specifically in relation to senior managers. Support to councils on all aspects of pay and 

grading ranging from small job evaluation projects to complete reviews of reward 

strategies and covering all elements of pay and conditions of service, e.g. Harrogate. 

 
Combined Authorities’ HR Network 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

https://local.gov.uk/benchmarking-data-lg-inform


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

42. We continue to convene quarterly meetings of this network and encourage cooperation 

and dialogue between HR leads in these areas.  We have provided information to them 

on job evaluation, apprenticeships, terms and conditions and run monthly briefings during 

the COVID crisis. 

 

Workforce Transformation through Organisational Development  

 

43. By working with key professionals responsible for transformation of services we aim to 

provide tools, techniques, leading practice workshops and action learning sets in the field 

of organisational development. The support offer is being delivered in partnership with 

North West Employers Organisation for Local Government and Roffey Park and will 

culminate in a national conference in 2021. 

 

Employee Engagement Diagnostic  

 

44. Working with partners, the LGA has developed an employee engagement diagnostic 

survey tool which identifies through key driver analysis what drives performance at work. 

In 2019/2020 the LGA provided support to a number of councils including Norfolk CC, LB 

Ealing, Tendering, Solihull and Cardiff who were supported to help improve employee 

engagement. 

 
Employment Law Advice 

 

45. We continue to issue monthly advice updates to over 5000 individuals on employment 

law cases and legislative developments and brief on the impact for local authorities and 

subscribers. In addition, we have provided advice in response to individual queries the 

volume of which increased tenfold in the first months of the COVID crisis. 

 

Workforce planning 

 

46. The LGA is providing councils with a new resource to aid strategic workforce planning. 

This provides a series of practice examples, templates, modelling tools and activities. We 

supported up to 40 councils from March to June 2020 to undertaken gap analysis on their 

approach and developed a Workforce Planning maturity model which is a helpful start in 

identifying a council’s workforce planning needs. We have also launched an online 

community of practice. 

 
Workforce priorities for the coming year  
 
47. Priorities for Workforce come under the MHCLG memorandum of understanding (MoU), 

which helps inform the work and priorities of the Resources Board. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

 
48. The MoU for 2020/21 was adjusted to take account of COVID-19 and includes workforce 

support and guidance in response to the pandemic. 
 

49. The MoU now assumes that programmes to deliver this overall outcome will focus on the 
recovery and rebuilding phase with a revised agreement from September 2020. The work 
programme will be organised around the five priorities set out in our Workforce Focus 
document updated for the recovery phase: 

 
49.1 organisational development and changed ways of working including more routine 

home-based work and socially-distanced teams; 

 

49.2 skills development and the new skills priorities for post-COVID service delivery; 

 

49.3 leadership in post-COVID organisations; 

 

49.4 recruitment in urgent shortage occupations 

 

49.5 pay and reward. 

 
50. Specific deliverables will include: 

 
50.1 Help councils to address inequalities, especially around gender, ethnicity and 

disability 

 

50.2 Support councils to transform their workforces and modernise the way they are 

managed through a range of HR/OD initiatives and in line with sector priorities. 

 

50.3 Identify the services with the most urgent recruitment problems post-COVID and 

explore the resources needed so that advice and support can be targeted most 

effectively 

 

50.4 An apprenticeship programme (of encouragement and practical support) designed 

to help councils increase the number of apprentices and maximise their levy 

investment. 

 
51. The LGA has an on-going remit to provide the secretariat functions for national pay 

negotiations. Deliverables will include: maintaining the national negotiating machinery on 
pay and workforce issues, facilitating the negotiation of a pay agreement that addresses 
the challenge of incorporating the potential growth in the National Living Wage whilst 
maintaining proper pay differentials, delivering affordable pay deals in the post-COVID 
financial environment whilst acknowledging the new value placed on public service. To 
deliver pay agreements for other occupational groups in the context described above. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

52. The Workforce team will continue to develop and provide advice on employment law 
issues and to respond on behalf of the sector to legislative and regulatory consultations. 

 
53. The team has a special responsibility for resolution of complex senior employee relations 

cases which continues to grow. 
 

54. The team also has an income-generating responsibility which will continue to focus on: 
 

54.1 Providing bespoke consultancy for example relating to recruiting, organising and 
rewarding senior management teams. 

 
54.2 Job evaluation. 
 
54.3 Enhancing and growing the information and support subscription service provided 

to associated employers such as academy trusts through the “Employer Link” 
programme. 

 
Welfare Reform 
 
Reshaping financial support 

 
55. We established the programme with six councils in Autumn 2019.  Each council has had 

funding to pilot / develop a relevant local project.  Projects include best practice in debt 

recovery, partnerships with the credit unions, and effective use of data to design 

integrated and preventative services. 

 

56. We commissioned the Financial Inclusion Centre to deliver bespoke consultancy support 

to the participating councils, and to work alongside the LGA to deliver a programme of 

action learning.  The programme was timetabled to conclude in March 2021. 

 

57. As the programme developed the six councils were joined by a number of further non-

funded councils who were keen to contribute to the action learning element of the 

programme. 

 

58. We delivered a successful conference to seventy delegates on 4th March 2020. 

 

59. When the coronavirus crisis escalated in late March work on financial hardship and 

economic vulnerability rose rapidly up the agenda.  We were able to quickly review and 

expand the programme to share emerging learning and policy development with a 

growing group of councils. 

 

60. Councils in the programme have contributed directly to Government policy and funding 

decisions on food poverty and hardship funding, including the recent £63m fund for ‘food 

and other essentials’ that is being disbursed to councils from the Department for the 

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and have provided a regular sounding board 

for Government departments, key stakeholders and partners. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

 

61. We have produced a range of guidance for the sector, drawing on the approach of 

councils in the programme. Publications include a summary of coronavirus crisis support 

and a good practice guide on financial hardship schemes. 

 

62. We have developed a ‘demand dashboard’ to enable councils to identify need, engage 

with partners and target support most effectively.  We are currently piloting the dashboard 

with 24 councils, with a view to developing something that can be expanded across the 

sector and used to support local benchmarking.  We are partnering with EY and Xantura 

on their work with councils to identify households at risk of debt and financial exclusion. 

This will also include work on data-sharing with partners including the VCS and DWP. 

 

63. We have worked with partners including Citizens Advice and Money Advice Trust to 

develop a shared ask to MHCLG on reviewing council tax regulations to make it easier 

for councils to support vulnerable residents.  We will be working with councils to develop 

good practice in debt recovery and liability, which will help to inform our response to the 

Cabinet Office call for evidence on fairness in debt management. 

 

64. We worked closely with MHCLG and councils on the implementation of the £500m 

‘hardship fund’ to provide reductions in council tax liability.  We have highlighted that the 

current funding is likely to be insufficient to enable councils to provide the support that 

low-income households need (MHCLG are collecting data as part of their monthly 

returns). 

Welfare delivery and reform 

 

65. We continue to work closely with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and 

councils on the implementation of Universal Credit and wider welfare reform. 

 

66. We published a report in February 2020 highlighting the cost impacts on councils’ 

homelessness services from the continued freeze of the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 

rate.  We have also worked consistently and effectively with a range of partners including 

Crisis, Shelter and London Councils to highlight the need to ensure affordability in the 

private rented sector. 

 

67. The LHA rate was lifted in March 2020 as part of the Government’s coronavirus 

measures.  Government has not ruled out the possibility of lowering the rate again in the 

forthcoming Spending Review.  Our research provides a solid evidence-base for 

continuing to press Government on the need for the LHA rate to remain at least the 30th 

percentile of market rents. 

 

68. Work on wider welfare reform has been suspended during the pandemic.  However, we 

have worked closely with DWP on temporary changes to benefits administration, as well 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/040520%20LGA%20Briefing%20economic%20Vulnerability%20and%20financial%20hardship%20coronavirus%20esponse%20.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/good-practice-guide-delivering-financial-hardship-support-schemes
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/895296/Fairness_in_gov_debt_management_Call_for_evidence_WEB.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-housing-allowance-freeze-and-homelessness


 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

as key issues including the sufficiency on Discretionary Housing Payment and local 

support for new Universal Credit claimants. 

 

69. We are commissioning research to review the impact on households when financial 

support (e.g. the furlough scheme; mortgage holidays) and temporary measures (e.g. the 

removal of the minimum income floor) are stepped down, and liabilities (e.g. rent; council 

tax) are restored.  This will inform future lobbying on funding for councils and the design 

on the benefits system. 

 

Welfare and Universal Credit Priorities for 2020-21 

 

70. Reshaping financial support will remain a key priority as councils support households 

through the social, financial and economic impacts of the pandemic.  We will continue to 

work with councils, Government and partners to promote and share good practice, and to 

make the case for a properly recognised and adequately resourced local safety net. 

 

71. Identify and share good practice on debt prevention, debt recovery and liabilities – 

balancing income maximisation with support for vulnerable households; making the case 

for reviewing council tax regulations; working with debt advice providers and the Money 

and Pensions Service (MaPs). 

 

72. Continue to highlight the vital role of councils in the wider welfare system, and ensure 

they are properly funded for local delivery; continue to monitor the impact of the benefits 

system on council services (e.g. housing and homelessness); make the case for effective 

integration and data-sharing to provide efficient, effective support to low-income 

households 

 
EU Funding 

 

73. For 2019/20, the Resources Board monitored and scrutinised the Government’s plans for 

EU funding in a “no deal” EU exit scenario. When “no deal” preparations were stood 

down, the focus was initially ensuring that the remaining European Structural and 

Investment Fund Programme was fully spent before the UK leaves the programme. 

 

74. Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the LGA sought intelligence from local 

and combined authorities on how current European Structural and Investment Fund 

activity has been impacted by COVID-19, and sought ideas on what could be done with 

remaining funds to support those businesses and residents most in need within the ESIF 

framework. Members of the Resources Board contributed to this intelligence gathering. 

The LGA submitted a summary of the intelligence and ideas gathered to the Performance 

and Dispute Resolution National Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 

Resources Board  

21 July 2020 

 
 

     

75. This has informed central government assurance that has been published. Using the new 

flexibilities £51 million of ERDF Reserve Fund monies has been secured to support 

councils implement social distancing measures for local high streets. The remaining parts 

of the ERDF Reserve Fund will be to support SMEs, including the Kickstart Tourism 

Package. The Board will continue to lobby for the use of the European Social Fund to 

support economic recovery. 

EU Funding Priorities for 2020/21 

 
76. The Board’s priority for 2020/21 will be to ensure that current EU funding is fully spent 

until the end of the 2014-20 programme, utilising the new flexibilities to support local 

economic recovery. There should also be a smooth transition from ESIF to the domestic 

replacement, the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF). The LGA is lobbying for this to be 

a localised, place-based fund, which affords maximum flexibility to target local needs and 

tailor support where it has best impact. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
77. All work programmes are met from existing LGA budgets and resources.  
 
Next Steps 
 
78. The Resources Board will discuss and agree the 2020/21 work programme during its first 

meeting of the new cycle – 15 September 2020. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6





Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 7





Document is Restricted

Page 39

Agenda Item 8





Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 9




	Agenda
	5 Covid-19 update
	6 End of Year Report and Board Priorities for 2020/21
	7 Council tax reform
	8 Workforce update
	9 Minutes of the previous meeting

